
TRUCKEE RIVER FUND ADVISORY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Friday, February 23, 2018, 8:30 a.m.
Community Foundation of Western Nevada

50 Washington Street, Suite 300, Reno, NV 89509

NOTES:

1. The announcement of this meeting has been posted at the following locations: Truckee Meadows Water Authority (1355 Capital), Reno City 
Hall (1 E. First), Sparks City Hall (431 Prater), Sparks Justice Court (1675 E. Prater Way, Sparks), Washoe County Clerk's 
Office/Courthouse (75 Court), Washoe County Central Library (301 South Center) Washoe County Administration (1001 East Ninth), State 
of Nevada Public Notice Website, https://notice.nv.gov/ and at http://www.truckeeriverfund.org/meetings.shtml

2. In accordance with NRS 241.020, this agenda closes three working days prior to the meeting.  We are pleased to make reasonable
accommodations for persons who are disabled and wish to attend meetings.  If you require special arrangements for the meeting, please call 
834-8002 before the meeting date.

3. Staff reports and supporting material for the meeting are available at Truckee River Fund and on the Truckee River Fund website 
http://truckeeriverfund.org/meetings/ or you can contact Sonia Folsom at (775) 834-8002. Supporting material is made available to the 
general public in accordance with NRS 241.020(6).

4. The Committee may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay discussion on agenda 
items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest.

5. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items.
6. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods.  The public may sign-up to speak during the 

public comment period or on a specific agenda item by completing a “Request to Speak” card and submitting it to the clerk.  In addition to 
the public comment periods, the Chairman has the discretion to allow public comment on any agenda item, including any item on which 
action is to be taken.

1. Roll Call*

2. Public comment (limited to no more than three minutes per speaker)*

3. Approval of the agenda (for possible action)

4. Approve the December summary meeting minutes (for possible action)
5. Fund balance report*

6. Review grant proposals to Truckee River Fund and select projects to be recommended for 
funding (for possible action)

7. Discuss tracking of match funds to ensure the requirement is met (for possible action)

8. Discuss and select date for field trip (for possible action)

9. Committee and staff comments*

10. Next meeting: June 1, 2018 (for possible action)

11. Public comment (limited to no more than three minutes per speaker)*

12. Adjournment (for possible action)



Page 1 of 6 

MEETING MINUTES
(TRANSCRIPT SUMMARY) 

TRUCKEE RIVER FUND ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEETING OF DECEMBER 1, 2017 

The following meeting minutes is a summary of the certified transcript for the Truckee River 
Fund Advisory Committee meeting held at 8:30 a.m., Friday, December 1, 2017. 

Those Present:  Committee Members:  Janet Phillips, Chairman**; Susan Lynn, Vice 
Chairman**; Michael Cameron*; Bill Bradley*; Mike Brisbin; Candice Elder*; Don Mahin;
and Brian Bonnenfant; Also:  Lauren Renda, Community Foundation of Western Nevada;
John Enloe and Sonia Folsom, both with TMWA; and Sylvia Harrison, Esq., McDonald 
Carano Wilson, LLP; Members of  the Public:  Lisa Wallace, Truckee River Watershed 
Council; Mikey Hazelwood, The Nature Conservancy; Christi Cakiroglu, Keep Truckee 
Meadows Beautiful; Alicia Reban, Nevada Land Trust; Birgit Henson, NDEP; and Kara 
Steeland, TMWA.

* Committee member arrived after roll call
** Committee member left meeting before adjournment

Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call: Roll call was taken.  A quorum was noted. 

Agenda Item #2:  Public comment:  There was no public comment.  

Agenda Item #3:  Approval of the agenda (for possible action): The agenda was 
unanimously approved. 

Agenda Item #4:  Approve the August summary meeting minutes (for possible action):
The Meeting Minutes (Transcript Summary) for August 18, 2017 was unanimously 
approved. 

Agenda Item #5:  Fund balance report: Lauren reported that we have $614,726.74 
available for the next cycle.

Agenda Item #6:  Review 2018 meeting calendar (for possible action): Janet stated that 
the Executive Committee met and put together the calendar, following the same series we’ve 
had in past years.  She noted that it’s important to have a quorum at the two proposal review 
meetings, February 23rd and August 17th. No action was taken.

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 4



Page 2 of 6 

Agenda Item #7:  Hear report and discussion on Truckee River Watershed Council 
projects, completed and in-progress (Lisa Wallace); update Farad burn site mud slide 
from The Nature Conservancy (Mickey Hazelwood) (for possible action):

Lisa Wallace gave a slide presentation, which included describing her organization (TRWC),
summarizing TRF funding and projects over the last decade, and talking about the Tributaries 
Assessment.  She showed a map of their area of focus and the degradation in various areas 
and how they prioritized those, areas that the TRF has helped them in, and how they came up 
with 50 large-scale restoration projects.  She talked about how they have had a meaningful 
relationship and 16 grants from the TRF since 2010, talked about match and leveraging that 
funding, and that they have made a significant 10% TMDL and sediment load reductions 
since then.  She talked about the tributaries, level of impairment of roads in those areas, and 
where they’ll be using our funds in 2018.  She thanked the group for their support since 
2010.  There were questions and comments by the group. 

Mickey Hazelwood gave a slide presentation, which included an update of a study they’re 
doing on watershed health and risk assessment, and the concern that we may be at risk of 
unnaturally large and intense wildfires in this watershed, together with the impacts that come 
with those, and he showed slides and a video clip post-fire in other areas of the West in 
watersheds much like ours.  He indicated that they’re looking at the cost of forest-thinning to 
greatly reduce the risk of these type of fires.  He talked about the Rio Grande Water Fund, a 
watershed investment program and the various groups that participate in it.  He described the 
Landscape Conservation Forecasting (LCF) tool developed by The Nature Conservancy, 
state transition models, and community engagement, their group of community advisors, 
science review committee, and subject matter experts that they’re working with, and how 
they’re developing large-scale land management plans, described how for the first time 
they’re combining their LCF modeling process with hydrologic and sediment transport 
modeling.  He talked about the next steps if the study demonstrates a compelling case for 
investment in the watershed. He added that in January they should have some pretty good 
results coming out of the modeling process to review, and by April they should be finished 
with the LCF and hydrologic part of the modeling part of the study, and sometime late 
summer they’ll wrap this up.  This is one of very few projects like this where we’re trying to 
get in front of an issue.  There were questions and comments from the group. 

No action was taken.

Agenda Item #8:  Hear report and discussion on One Truckee River (Christi Cakiroglu) 
(for possible action):  Christi Cakiroglu, Alicia Reban, and Birgit Henson gave the report 
and slide show.  Christi began by describing how she and Alicia are the original pushers of 
this, and that Birgit has important information to share.  She gave some history of this 
initiative and how it’s a partnership of organizations that want to do some good things for the 
river in a much more constructive way than in the past.  She talked about how with the seed 
money from the TRF they were able to create a planning effort, identified nine key issues, 
including social issues affecting water quality, over 100 actions items identified by 130 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 4



Page 3 of 6 

stakeholders, came up with four primary goals.  The plan was unanimously adopted by 
Washoe County, City of Reno and City of Sparks in 2016. 

Alicia talked about how they completed the baseline amenities mapping, that they worked 
with NDEP to complete the community knowledge survey, they have teacher resource and
photo guides with the help of AmeriCorps, a couple new life jacket stations.  She talked 
about the mile markers every tenth of a mile to aid with public safety and rescue efforts.  
They participated in AB 379, which gives communities the option of creating a special park 
district, that having a single linear park may solve a lot of issues identified by the One 
Truckee River process.  She mentioned that there’s lots of fund-raising to do, talked about 
the signage and wayfinding plan grant from TRF that will be underway shortly.  They’ve 
received information on several models that other communities have used successfully.  
They’re working to bring on the One Truckee River coordinator.  She described other things 
being looked at, such as housing. 

Janet Phillips needed to leave the meeting, and Susan Lynn began presiding over the 
meeting.

Birgit talked about what NDEP and some other partners are doing.  She brought in a 
colleague at NDEP and they were able to get a watershed planning component put in as the 
main strategy of the One Truckee River plan.  Becoming a partner and working through that 
process gave them an avenue for other things going on with the state to participate actively.  
She talked about the money they’ve leveraged toward this effort, and other money requests.  
They have a lot of information they’re sorting through, and moving forward with getting 
projects in the plan approved by the EPA, which opens up more federal funding for more 
projects.  The traction gained through this project was critical for them to move forward with 
bigger, much more important planning processes. 

There were questions, comments and discussion.  No action was taken.

Agenda Item #9:  Hear reports on projects completed in the last year:  #135 Nevada 
Department of Wildlife New Zealand mud snail and aquatic invasive species outreach 
for the Truckee River (Bill Bradley); #137 Nevada Land Trust Alum Creek Water 
Quality Improvement (Bill Bradley); #141 Tahoe Resource Conservation District 
Truckee River Eurasian Watermilfoil Survey & Removal (Mike B.); #160 Truckee 
River Watershed Council Johnson Canyon Westside Restoration (Candice); #162 
Nevada Conservation District Rosewood & Third Creeks Invasive Weed Removal 
(Jerry/Janet/Lauren?); #169 City of Reno Truckee River Cleanup Crew Year2 (Susan); 
#173 Tahoe Fund Take Care - Truckee River (Susan); #176 Keep Truckee Meadows 
Beautiful 2017 Spring Invasive Weed Pull & Fall Cleanup (Susan); #178 Truckee River 
Watershed Council Donner Creek Concept Design (Don); #181 Truckee Donner Land
Trust Webber Lake Little Truckee Headwaters Management (Michael); #184 Sierra 
Nevada Journeys Watershed Education Initiative (Janet): 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 4



Page 4 of 6 

Regarding #135 Nevada Department of Wildlife New Zealand mud snail and aquatic 
invasive species outreach for the Truckee River (Bill Bradley), Bill reported that this was 
placement of signs along the river back in 2014 and 2015, and unfortunately there was no 
river at that time.  All but $8,000 of the original grant was given back to the organization.  
Each of the communities decided to do it themselves.  He got the impression that the effort 
tailed off because of lack of people using the river.  He’ll follow up on whether or not that 
project needs to be revisited, with the river being much more vibrant now.  The money would 
be available to regrant if they came back in with another proposal. 

Regarding #137 Nevada Land Trust Alum Creek Water Quality Improvement (Bill Bradley), 
Bill reported that one branch of Alum Creek was discovered to be highly impacted by the 
development of Caughlin Ranch and overuse of fertilizer; they have now adopted 
nonphosphorus fertilizer.  The other branch was attributable to a land management and 
stormwater problem, and recommendations were made which have now been carried out. 

Regarding #141 Tahoe Resource Conservation District Truckee River Eurasian Watermilfoil 
Survey & Removal (Mike B.), Mike reported that they had originally asked for $110,000, 
that we had asked what they could cut out, and it was brought back down to $59,000.  He 
stated that in the future it would be helpful to get a follow-up proposal so we know exactly 
what they’re going to do.  He described that the project was a three-mile stretch of the river, 
that their drone videos had too much surface reflection on the water to be useful, that the 40 
volunteers weren’t able to hand-pull milfoil in over 1,000 of the 1,800 total linear feet, that 
the more effective part was scuba divers with dredges near the dam and then just downstream 
of that the half an acre that they put bottom barriers on.  It was effective at wiping out most 
of the milfoil.  Another part was public outreach.  They completed the activities specified in 
the proposal, and the grantee deemed their project a success, and it was successful.  He 
indicated that he’d like to see them come back with another proposal to assess the entire 
Truckee River mapping, to assess how big is the problem. 

Regarding #160 Truckee River Watershed Council Johnson Canyon Westside Restoration 
(Candice), Candice described the project and the goals, passed around the plan set that she 
brought.  She reported that the funding was used for the activities specified, that not all 
activities specified were completed due to our funding it at $25,000 of the $92,000 requested, 
that the grantee deemed their project a success, and that they met expectations and their 
stated goals.

Regarding #162 Nevada Conservation District Rosewood & Third Creeks Invasive Weed 
Removal (Jerry/Janet/Lauren?),  Susan stated that Janet’s report indicates that not all weeds 
were eradicated; but they met most, but not all, of their expectations; and they completed the 
activities specified. 

Regarding #169 City of Reno Truckee River Cleanup Crew Year2 (Susan), Susan reported 
that they completed year number two, that they will probably not be coming back for further 
funding, that they lost a lot of their volunteer crew, so it went to their paid staff to continue 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 4



Page 5 of 6 

activities.  They achieved what they intended.  She doesn’t know what level they feel 
satisfied but will have a further report on Monday, so it isn’t signed off on yet. 

Regarding #173 Tahoe Fund Take Care - Truckee River (Susan), Susan reported that it is still 
pending, but most of it is done, and she’ll have a report Monday afternoon. 

Regarding #176 Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful 2017 Spring Invasive Weed Pull & Fall 
Cleanup (Susan),  Susan reported that it has been completed, they by far and away exceeded 
their expectations and goals in all elements, they spent their money as planned and will 
probably be back for next year. 

Regarding #178 Truckee River Watershed Council Donner Creek Concept Design (Don), 
Don reported that they completed their 60% design for the projects along Donner Creek 
between Donner Lake and Truckee.  They feel they’re successful because CalTrans is 
facilitating future funding for the final design and project implementation and that that 
funding is in process 

Regarding #181 Truckee Donner Land Trust Webber Lake Little Truckee Headwaters 
Management (Michael), Michael reported that they were proposing to thin 34 to 40 acres 
with a risk of a crown fire, which was successful.  They focused in on the highest area of risk 
and wound up thinning a slightly different area around the lake than they originally intended.  
Michael and Lauren will follow up on a question they have regarding the match amount.  
Sylvia suggested adding an agenda for a future meeting to address how to make sure those 
matches are coming in.

Regarding #184 Sierra Nevada Journeys Watershed Education Initiative (Janet), Susan stated 
that Janet’s report indicates that they completed and exceeded their expectations in all three 
goals, success and meeting the activities specified.

Agenda Item #10:  Review need for quarterly reports on small grants (for possible 
action):  Lauren described some situations for how this agenda item came to be.  There was 
discussion by the group, with input from Sylvia, and it was decided that no changes are 
necessary to the way the reports are currently handled. No action was taken.

Agenda Item #11:  Discuss possible revisions to Request for Proposals ("RFP"), 
including but not limited to:  Identifying any special topics that should be considered 
for next RFP; including zoning, development, and land use plans that might affect 
certain proposals (for possible action): Susan stated she needed to leave the meeting but 
noted three items that she had written down for possible discussion:  one, should we require a 
follow-up to proposals after the final report on monitoring the success of the project; two, 
how much money do we want to spend on milfoil; and, three, how to deal with matches that 
are met or not met. Bill Bradley presided over the rest of the meeting.

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 4



Page 6 of 6 

Regarding zoning, development, and land use plans that might affect certain proposals, the 
group had a discussion.  A motion was unanimously approved to add wording in the RFP 
regarding if there’s any known or foreseeable changes or updates with regards to zoning, 
land use, or land development. 

Regarding the other topics mentioned, they will be put on as future agenda items.

Agenda Item #12: Committee and staff comments:  Mike commented that this is the first 
meeting ever where all the reports that were due were reported. Sylvia added that she really 
appreciated hearing all of the reports, that going back to the accountability standard it’s nice 
to have all the reports prepared and presented. 

Agenda Item #13:  Next meeting:  January 19, 2018 (for possible action): It was noted 
that the next meeting is Friday, February 23, 2018.  No action was taken.   

Agenda Item #14: Public comment (limited to no more than three minutes per 
speaker): There were no public comments. 

Agenda Item #15: Adjournment (for possible action):  The meeting adjourned at 
10:34 a.m.  No action was taken. 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 4



1 

Cover Sheet 
Organization Name: Sierra Nevada Journeys 
Type: 501(c)(3) EIN#01-0881587 Governmental entity? No 
Address: 190 E. Liberty St. | Reno, NV 89501 
Project Name: Watershed Education Initiative 

Amount requested: $83,376 Website: www.sierranevadajourneys.org 
This funding will be used to (complete this 
sentence with a max of 2 sentences): 

SNJ will deliver high-quality, experiential watershed education 
programs based on local issues to protect and enhance the 
quality of the Truckee River and RAP will deliver water-saving 
opportunities for residential customers through a family 
education program and home water efficiency kits. Both 
programs will work together through cross-promotion to 
significantly increase students’ commitment to long-term 
sustainability and protection of the primary water source for 
our community.  

Key People: Director: Eaton Dunkelberger, CEO 
Board 
Chair: 

Mark Burrell 

Project 
Contact: 

Name: Sean Hill 
Position: Education Director 
Phone: 775-355-1688
Fax: 775-329-1689
Email: sean@sierranevadajourneys.org 

Organization Mission: Sierra Nevada Journeys’ mission is to deliver innovative outdoor, science-based 
education programs for youth to develop critical thinking skills and to inspire natural 
resource stewardship. 

Has your organization 
received other grants 
from the Truckee River 
Fund?  
Yes  X     No    
(please see page 7) 

If yes, 
Date awarded: June 2017 
Project title: Watershed Education Initiative 
Amount of Award: $32,998 
Date awarded: March 2017 
Project title: Watershed Education Initiative 
Amount of Award: $28,446 
Date awarded: September 2016 
Project title: Watershed Education Initiative 
Amount of Award: $28,446 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION 
Indicate the description that best fits the project you are proposing. Mark no more than three categories: 

A. Projects that improve bank or channel stabilization and decrease erosion.
B. Structural controls or Low Impact Development (LID) projects on tributaries and drainages to the Truckee River
where data supports evidence of pollution and/or sediments entering the Truckee River.
C. Projects that remove pollution from the Truckee River.
D. Projects that remove or control invasive aquatic species or terrestrial invasive plant species that are adverse to
water supply.1

E. Other projects that meet the evaluation criteria.

NARRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

1 For proposals related to weed control/eradication, contact Tracy Turner at the Community Foundation of Western Nevada 
for additional criteria. tturner@nevadafund.org; 775-333-5499. 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#195



2 

1. Specific project goals and measurable outcomes and how you will measure and report them.
During the past eight years, Sierra Nevada Journeys’ (SNJ) Watershed Education Initiative (WEI) has

impacted nearly 7,000 students and 500 educators. This has been made possible thanks to the generous support of 
the Truckee River Fund since 2011. WEI educates students about the local watershed including human impacts on 
the watershed, water quality, and watershed protection. To increase the impact of our watershed education 
programming, SNJ is collaborating with Resource Actions Programs’ (RAP) WaterWise Program to further engage 
students, families, and community members in measurable water saving activities. Through WEI and WaterWise,
we will successfully meet the following objectives: 

Outputs Outcomes

W
at

er
sh

ed
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

In
iti

at
iv

e

Deliver WEI to 1,100 K-8th grade 
students from throughout northern 
Nevada.

All students receive first-hand 
experience with the local watershed 
through a field-study on the Truckee 
River or one of its tributaries. 

123 parents and community 
members volunteer for the program 
and serve 738 educational service 
hours. 

Provide 41 teachers with WEI 
extension lessons.

80% of students can correctly identify, label, and diagram the Truckee 
River Watershed.

70% of students will use knowledge of storm drains to describe how 
individuals and communities can protect watersheds.

80% of students will define what happens to rainwater and associated non-
point source pollutants after they enter a storm drain.

95% of students participating in “Hands in the River” curriculum complete 
a Truckee River issue case study on water quality in the watershed. 

80% of students will describe two ways to determine the health of the local 
watershed.

90% of teachers will report that the program is helping to build critical 
thinking skills among their students.

W
at

er
W

is
e 

Enroll 1,000 Washoe County 
students into the WaterWise 
program.

Direct Water Savings:
Participants will save 8,208 gallons of water per home annually
Participants will save 8,208 gallons of wastewater per home annually 

Through Water Savings:
Participants will save 30 therms of gas per home annually 
Participants will save 153 kWh of electricity per home annually

Methods to measure outputs: SNJ’s Education Department and RAP’s Program Manager manages an internal 
database that tracks details on participating students, schools, and volunteers. 
Methods to measure outcomes: SNJ will use pre- and post-assessments completed by each participating student and 
teacher surveys. A consultant from the Nevada Department of Education’s assessment office informed the design of 
the assessments. RAP will use participating students to provided water efficiency measures and surveys. RAP 
incentivizes teachers to implement the program in its entirety and return Student Surveys for accurate reporting. 

2. Project location: SNJ works throughout the Truckee River watershed to educate students. In partnership
with RAP, we will continue outreach to these communities to deliver WEI and WaterWise programming. During 
WEI, the three main field sites for this program are the Truckee River at the McCarran Ranch Preserve, Galena 
Creek Regional Park, and the Oxbow Nature Study Area. These locations are convenient and close to home for 
local students, increasing their sense of ownership, awareness and comfort with accessible nature areas.  

3. Project description.
SNJ’s Watershed Education Initiative Overview

The school-based component includes three in-class lessons (4.5) hours of engaging instruction. Students 
participate in hands-on lessons that incorporate the Truckee River watershed, the water cycle, point and non-point 
source pollution, invasive species, sources and impacts of erosion, water conservation and stewardship.  

The field-based component includes approximately one day of outdoor science education as students hike 
around the Truckee or one of its tributaries. Students seek clues related to the health of the watershed and determine 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#195



3 

water quality by collecting and identifying macro-invertebrates or conducting chemical tests such as pH, dissolved 
oxygen, or turbidity. Students use evidence to make a conclusion about the health of the Truckee River Watershed.

SNJ provides five ready-to-use classroom extension lessons for teachers that help students prepare for and 
review learning objectives as well as extend and reinforce each SNJ-directed lesson. By explicitly modeling 
teaching methods and reinforcing with SNJ’s classroom lessons we strive to support educators and multiply the 
effects of our student programming.  

To encourage family engagement, SNJ provides teachers with a template to email parents with a summary
and pictures of their child’s experience after each unit along with information for family-based discussion of the 
curriculum. This increases parent involvement, which allows individuals within families to reinforce the attitudes, 
motivations, skills, and behaviors learned and to foster parent–student communication about watershed-related 
topics.  
 The volunteer component of the program builds our capacity to involve the local community and broadens 
accessibility to our programming for low-income schools by helping to keep costs low. Volunteers, who are 
primarily comprised of retired educators, naturalists, and parent chaperones, also consistently report learning 
tremendously in their participation with WEI.  
RAP’s WaterWise Program

RAP designs and implements water conservation programs that inspire change in households across the 
country. The WaterWise Program will target residential customers in the Truckee watershed via 5th grade students, 
teachers, and families while engaging the community in water education. The goal is to create water-saving 
opportunities for residential customers through a school education program that aligns with Nevada State K-12 
Common Core Learning Standards in Mathematics, English Language Arts, and Science.

RAP will identify and enroll 5th grade teachers and students into the program using a customized outreach 
approach. Participating teachers are provided with lesson plans and interactive, investigative curriculum, allowing 
implementation to occur in the classroom. Step-by-step directions and kits filled water efficiency measures are 
provided for the teacher to ensure program milestones are achieved. The program offers a variety of materials, 
customized to incorporate the TMWA brand.

Student Materials Teacher Materials
Water Wise Kit* Full color teacher folder
Take-home student guide Pre/Post knowledge test
Installation instruction booklet Survey return envelope (postage paid/Tyvek)
Student survey form Teacher evaluation form
Certificate of achievement Teacher thank you card and envelope

Student Supplies Parent Materials
Digital thermometer Program instructions
Resource fact chart Pledge form / Letter to parent
Teflon tape Parent program evaluation form
Student wristbands

Program Resources
Dedicated, toll-free, 1:1 call-in support line

Water Wise Kits* include: 
(1) 1.75 gpm High-Efficiency Showerhead; (1) 1.5 gpm Kitchen Faucet Aerator; (1) 1.0 gpm Bathroom 
Faucet Aerator; (1) Rain/ Drip Gauge; (1) Flow Rate Test Bag; (1) Toilet Leak Detector Tablets
WaterWise is based on RAP’s proven Measure-Based Education (MBE) methodology. MBE is a 

combination of cost-effective measures blended with interactive education and hands-on activities. The result is 
students who readily engage in the program, and with the help of their parents, facilitate the water-saving measure 
installation at home. 

Teachers are incentivized to implement the program in its entirety, and return student surveys for accurate 
reporting. A final Program Summary Report will be prepared and provided to SNJ who will then submit to TRF 
that presents information on program participants, implementation steps, installation rates, and resource savings.  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#195



4 

Collaborative Outreach and Cross Promotion
Strong programs on their own, the WEI and WaterWise programs offer complementary education efforts that 

build off each other’s teachings to make students better stewards of our local watershed, and families more 
informed water users.  Teachers will have the option to utilize both programs to reinforce the educational impacts 
of each. SNJ and RAP will partner on email and outreach opportunities (events, flyers etc.) to leverage the 
resources of each program, with the ultimate goal of increasing participation in both programs.  

4. Grant priorities.  
WEI and WaterWise are education programs that address the concepts of local water resources, water quality 

and watershed protection for elementary students, directly aligning with grant priority VI: Stewardship and 
Environmental Awareness. Between the two programs, students gain first-hand experience with the Truckee River, 
explore human impacts on their water source, obtain skills and knowledge to help protect the watershed, and an 
understanding of ways to reduce water consumption at home.  

WEI’s overall long-term impacts we aim to achieve through this program include:  
• Students understand important science concepts related to the Truckee River watershed and can 

articulate how their actions affect the Truckee River watershed and local ecosystems.
• Teachers use extension lessons and implement more hands-on exploration of the watershed.  
• Parents and community members engage in watershed education directly through WEI volunteer 

opportunities  
Although water savings are apparent throughout RAP’s WaterWise lesson, students and families learn together 

that changes in water usage also affects savings across gas and electricity as well. WaterWise’s overall long-term 
impacts aim to save the following natural resources connected to water saving methods:

Both programs have the ultimate goal of improving the health of the Truckee River watershed and local 
ecosystems as students and their families adopt environmental stewardship practices that help reduce water 
pollution and human impacts. 

5. Permitting. - N/A 
6. If future phases of the project will be needed, identify anticipated sources of funding. - N/A 
7. Principals involved: 
Credentialed science educators on the SNJ staff will be directly responsible for coordination and delivery of 

watershed education programs. Sean Hill, SNJ’s Education Director, will oversee the implementation of WEI. Sean 
is a former science teacher and holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Montana State University and a Master of 
Science degree in Human Dimensions of Natural Resources from Colorado State University. 

RAP will assign a specific implementation team to the Reno WaterWise program who will work with SNJ
for the duration of the contract. The team is led by a PMP®-certified program manager with an MBA who will 
manage the daily operations, and ensure the program hits key milestones and results.

8. Number of staff positions involved in project: Fulltime 10 Part-time 7  
9. Number of volunteers involved: 123 volunteers (including field educators and parent volunteers) will 

donate 738 volunteer hours during WEI’s field-study portion of the program, increasing parents and 
community member access to watershed education. 

10. Time Line of Project.  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#195



5 

SNJ Deliverables
Recruitment/Scheduling: SNJ outreach efforts are continuous. Outreach is now underway for the spring 
semester. SNJ targets schools that participated in watershed programming in the past and new schools that 
have not received WEI.

February – June 

Program Delivery: SNJ instructors will deliver engaging watershed education lessons to 1100 students 
through school-based and field-based programs. February – July 

Evaluation: SNJ staff will compile student assessment data throughout the grant period. These results 
will inform any changes to the curriculum to ensure effective programming in the future. February – July 

Final Report: Submit the final report to the Community Foundation of Western Nevada. This report will 
include a summary of  the work completed, student assessment data, and a budget update. July 

RAP Deliverables
Preparation & Program Ramp-Up: RAP and SNJ will review logistics of the partnership, develop 
project plan, identify program targets and school list, produce materials for teachers and students. February - June

Implementation: RAP will outreach to researched schools and teachers, enroll teachers, assemble and 
ship materials to enrolled teachers, and provide ongoing teacher support and follow-up February – July 

Assessment & Reporting: RAP staff will collect assessment data provided from teachers. February – July
Final Report: A final Program Summary Report will be prepared and provided to SNJ that presents 
information on program participants, implementation steps, installation rates, and resource savings by 
July 31, 2018.

July 

 
11. Success.  

SNJ Outputs Tracking 

Deliver watershed education to 1,100 K-8th grade students from throughout northern Nevada. 
Internal SNJ 
database – Updated 
regularly 
throughout the year

All students receive first-hand experience with the local watershed through a field-study on the Truckee 
River or one of its tributaries.
123 parents and community members volunteer for the program and serve 738 service hours.

Provide 41 teachers with WEI extension lessons.

SNJ Outcomes Tracking 
80% of students can correctly identify, label, and diagram the Truckee River Watershed. Pre- and post-

assessments – 
reviewed after the 
end of each 
program and 
presented in report 
at end of grant 
period

Teacher surveys

70% of students will use knowledge of storm drains to describe how individuals and communities can 
protect watersheds.
80% of students can define what happens to rainwater and associated non-point source pollutants after they 
enter a storm drain.
95% of students participating in “Hands in the River” curriculum complete a Truckee River issue case study 
on water quality in the watershed.
80% of students will describe two ways to determine the health of the local watershed.

90% of teachers will report that the program is helping to build critical thinking skills among their students.

 
RAP Outputs Tracking 
Enroll 1,000 Washoe County students into the WaterWise program. Internal RAP database – Updated regularly 

throughout the year

RAP Outcomes Tracking 
Participants will save 8,208 gallons of water per home annually. Participating students are provided water 

efficiency measures and surveys.Participants will save 30 therms of gas per home annually.
Participants will save 153 kWh of electricity per home annually.
Participants will save 8,208 gallons of wastewater per home annually.

 
 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#195



6 

12. Grant Match 
Match amount to be provided: $28,092 (25% of requested funds) 
Match details: Match is:      

Cash  $12,707 
In-kind  $15,385 

For the cash portion of your match, is the funding already being held by the applicant for this 
project?  Yes __  No _X_ 

Description of matching 
funds/in-kind donations: 

Match provided by bus transportation expenses paid for by the Washoe County School 
District and funding from NDEP (Nevada Department of Environmental Protection). In-
kind match provided by field educator volunteers and parent volunteer hours. 

 
13. Project Budget 
Watershed Education Initiative (WEI) Budget  
 ORIGINAL PROJECT BUDGET  

Budget Item Description TRF $ Other Funding 
Name Match $ Total 

Labor—paid: 
Program Teachers at $18.15/hour x 1025 
hours, 21.65% fringe/benefits  
Education Director/Finance 
Director/Marketing Director at $35.00 x 625 
hours (outreach, training, program eval., 
grant and subcontract admin.). 17.9% 
fringe/benefits 

$39,706 NDEP $8,000 
 
$47,706 
 

Labor—volunteer:  
An average of 3 volunteers per field-study 
dedicate 6 hours to helping guide and 
facilitate the program = 18 hours per class / 
27 kids per class.  Independent Sector Value 
of Volunteer time in Nevada = $20.98/hour 

$0 SNJ 
Volunteers $15,385 $15,385 

Materials: $2/student for 1100 students for 
printing and program supplies and materials $2,200 - $0 $2,200 

Other: Transportation costs cover expenses 
associated with SNJ staff traveling to and 
from schools and field sites including 
company vehicle expenses.  Approx. 1,800 
miles to serve 41 classes (60 miles/class @ 
0.535 per mile). 

$1,308 

 
 
- 
 

$0 $1,308 

Other: School bus transportation for 
students - Approx. $90/class * approx. 41 
classes  

$0 
Washoe 

County School 
District 

$  3,667 
 
$3,667 
 

Overhead (13%) $5,162 NDEP $1,040 $6,202 
Other: Sub Contract: Resource Action 
Programs Water Wise Education for 1000 
students 

$35,000 - $0 $35,000 

TOTAL $83,376 $28,092 (25%) $111,468 
 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#195



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#196



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#196



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#196



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#196



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#196



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#196



Cover Sheet Date: 
Organization Name: 
Type: 501(c)(3) EIN# Governmental entity? Y/N 
Address: 
Project Name: 
Amount requested: Website: 
This funding will be used to (complete this 
sentence with a max of 2 sentences): 
Key People: Director: 

Board 
Chair: 
Project 
Contact: 

Name: 

Position: 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Email: 

Organization Mission: 

Has your organization 
received other grants 
from the Truckee River 
Fund?  
Yes           No   
(use additional page if 
necessary) 

If yes, 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION 
Indicate the description that best fits the project you are proposing. Mark no more than three categories: 

A. Projects that improve bank or channel stabilization and decrease erosion.
B. Structural controls or Low Impact Development (LID) projects on tributaries and drainages to the Truckee
River where data supports evidence of pollution and/or sediments entering the Truckee River.
C. Projects that remove pollution from the Truckee River.
D. Projects that remove or control invasive aquatic species or terrestrial invasive plant species that are
adverse to water supply.3

E. Other projects that meet the evaluation criteria.

NARRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

3 For proposals related to weed control/eradication, contact Lauren Renda at the Community Foundation of Western 
Nevada for additional criteria. lrenda@nevadafund.org; 775-333-5499. 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



Grant Match 
Match amount to be provided: $ 
Match details: Please provide the form of your matching funds. If match is made up of both cash and in-

kind, fill in both sections.  

Match is:   
Cash $ 
In-kind $ 

Note: Volunteer and in-kind hours may be calculated at a maximum rate 
of $20/hour per individual. Indirect cost may not be counted as match. 

For the cash portion of your match, is the funding already being held by the applicant for 
this project?  Yes __  No __ 

Description of 
matching 
funds/in-kind 
donations: 

ATTACHMENTS 
You may be asked to submit the following attachments via email. If you are asked to submit the attachments, clearly 
label each file with your organization’s name. If you do not have the ability to email them, place each of the items listed 
below on a separate page and submit just one copy. 
Nonprofits submit: 

Last audited financial statements if your organization has been audited 
List of Board of Directors 
Copy of agency’s IRS 501(c)(3) Tax Determination Letter 
Copy of the agency’s most recent IRS Form 990 

Governmental entities submit: 
Departmental budget in lieu of audited financial statements 

16,080

2,400
13,680

Our AmeriCorps VISTA Volunteer and Outreach Coordinator is responsible for implementing, building, and 
sustaining this project. This member's time is valued at $2,400 and this funding is already secured through 
an AmeriCorps grant. Doggie Ambassador volunteers contribute an average of 1.5 hours of service each 
month and we anticipate managing 30 of these volunteers from August 2018 to August 2019. Thus, Doggie 
Ambassador volunteers provide an in-kind value of $10,800. Two education volunteers will contribute an 
in-kind value of $2,880. In conclusion, our total grant match value is $16,080, or 51% of the total budget.

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



   
 

 
 

    
    

  In
ve

nt
or

ie
d 

Do
g 

W
as

te
 B

ag
 S

ta
tio

ns
 in

 R
en

o,
 N

ev
ad

a 
(2

01
8)

 
 

     
    

    
    

 LE
GE

ND
 

 
 Tr

uc
ke

e 
Ri

ve
r W

at
er

sh
ed

 
 

 
Tr

uc
ke

e 
Ri

ve
r 

  
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
Do

g 
W

as
te

 
Ba

g 
St

at
io

ns
 

  
Un

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

Do
g 

W
as

te
  

Ba
g 

St
at

io
ns

 
  

Da
m

ag
ed

 D
og

 W
as

te
  

Ba
g 

St
at

io
ns

  
  Ch

al
k 

Bl
uf

f W
at

er
  

Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

nt
 

 
          De

fin
iti

on
s:

 
In

ve
nt

or
ie

d 
Do

g 
W

as
te

 B
ag

 S
ta

tio
ns

: s
ta

tio
ns

 th
at

 T
ru

ck
ee

 M
ea

do
w

s P
ar

ks
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
ha

s r
ec

or
d 

of
 a

nd
 a

re
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 D
og

gi
e 

Am
ba

ss
ad

or
 P

ro
je

ct
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

Do
g 

W
as

te
 B

ag
 S

ta
tio

ns
: t

he
re

 is
/a

re
 v

ol
un

te
er

(s
) a

ct
iv

el
y 

fil
lin

g 
th

e 
st

at
io

n 
w

ith
 b

ag
s 

Un
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
Do

g 
W

as
te

 B
ag

 S
ta

tio
ns

: t
he

re
 is

/a
re

 n
o 

as
sig

ne
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r(
s)

 to
 fi

ll 
th

e 
st

at
io

n 
Da

m
ag

ed
 D

og
 W

as
te

 B
ag

 S
ta

tio
ns

: t
he

 st
at

io
n 

is 
ei

th
er

 b
ro

ke
n,

 th
e 

ke
y 

do
es

 n
ot

 o
pe

n 
th

e 
bo

x,
 o

r t
he

re
 a

re
 w

as
ps

 li
vi

ng
 in

sid
e 

th
e 

bo
x 

 

02
-2

3-
18

 T
R

F 
A

ge
nd

a 
Ite

m
 6

 
#1

97



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#197



Cover Sheet Date:  January 8, 2018 
Organization  Board of Regents, NSHE, obo the Desert Research Institute
Type: 501(c)(3) EIN# 88-6000024 Governmental entity?  No 
Address:  2215 Raggio Parkway, Reno, NV, 89512-1095
Project Name:  Determining the role of signal crayfish in the Truckee River foodweb 
Amount requested:  $12,010 Website:  www.dri.edu 
This funding will be used to (complete 
this sentence with a max of 2 sentences): 

 Currently it is unclear how invasive crayfish impact the 
 foodweb in the Truckee River. The evaluation of crayfish 
 impacts, as a potential target species for management,  
 may help to protect and enhance water quality in the  
 Truckee River. 

Key People: Director:  Kumud Acharya, Ph.D. 
Board 
Chair: 

 Yvonne Rumbaugh, Business Manager 

Project 
Contact: 

Name:  John Umek 
Position:  Postdoctoral Fellow 
Phone: 775-673-7493
Fax: 775-673-7363
Email:  John.Umek@dri.edu 

Organization 
Mission: 

DRI excels in basic and applied research and the application of technologies to improve 
people's lives throughout Nevada and the world. DRI implements this mission by 
fostering scientific and engineering talent. DRI applies scientific understanding to the 
effective management of natural resources while meeting Nevada's needs for economic 
diversification and science-based educational opportunities. 

Has your 
organization 
received other 
grants from the 
Truckee River 
Fund? 
Yes   X       No 
(use additional 
page if 
necessary) 

If yes, 

50Washington Street, Suite 300, Reno, NV 89503
Phone 775 333 5499 // Fax 775 333 5487 // nevadafund.org

Connecting peoplewho care with causes thatmatter.

Date awarded:  September 16, 2009 

Project title:  #67 Cloud Seeding Project for Tahoe and Truckee 
 Basins for WY2010 – Truckee River Fund - Tahoe 

Amount of Award:  $165,151 
Date awarded:  October 25, 2010 
Project title:  #81 Cloud Seeding Project for Tahoe and Truckee 

 Basins for WY2011 

Amount of Award:  $155,876 
Date awarded:  July 11, 2011 

Project title:  #87 Integrated Water Quality Monitoring on the 
 Truckee River 

Amount of Award:  $318,012 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#198



2 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION 
Indicate the description that best fits the project you are proposing. Mark no more than three categories: 
 

A. Projects that improve bank or channel stabilization and decrease erosion. 
B. Structural controls or Low Impact Development (LID) projects on tributaries and drainages to the 

Truckee  River where data supports evidence of pollution and/or sediments entering the Truckee River. 
C. Projects that remove pollution from the Truckee River. 
D. Projects that remove or control invasive aquatic species or terrestrial invasive plant species that are 

adverse to water supply.3 

E. Other projects that meet the evaluation criteria. 
 

 

3 For proposals related to weed control/eradication, contact Lauren Renda at the Community Foundation of 
Western Nevada for additional criteria. lrenda@nevadafund.org; 775-333-5499. 

NARRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

Truckee River Fund 

I. Project Goals and Measurable Outcomes 
Species invasions have occurred within the Truckee River Watershed for over 130 years, 
including the intentional introduction of species to promote fisheries. The Truckee River benthic 
environment are being impacted by these non-native species, particularly those that are capable 
of aggressive spread and predation. Unfortunately, the knowledge about water quality versus 
invasive species is unclear in river systems in the region. Previous research at Lake Tahoe 
suggest that shifts in water quality versus invasive species may be contributing the decline of 
native benthic invertebrate’s endemic to Lake Tahoe such as the native stonefly and blind 
amphipods. Recent research has also shown that attached algae is a significant source of energy 
to crayfish, zoobenthos, and fish (Hecky and Hesslien 1995; Bootsma et al. 1996; France and 
Steedman 1996; Cambell et al. 2000; Vander Zanden and Vadeboncoeur 2002) and is often 
overlooked as a whole system primary productivity (Westlake et al. 1980; Havens et al. 2001; 
Vandeboncoeur et al. 2001; Vadeboncoeur and Steinman 2002, Wetzel 1964). Crayfish are an 
important predator on native benthic invertebrates and may directly or indirectly contribute to 
river algal production as the grazing pressure of benthic invertebrates is decreased. To date there 
have been no studies on the impacts of invasive crayfish in the Truckee River. Given the 
potential of crayfish to cause deleterious, unpredictable changes in not only the lower foodweb, 
but also impacts to the top fish species,  it is vital to elucidate the role of an aquatic invasive 
species to determine if signal crayfish (Pacifastacus leniusculus), are controlling native 
invertebrate and peripyhton communities. It is unclear if signal crayfish, in the Truckee River, 
are having positive or negative impacts on periphyton and benthic macroinvertebrates, and 
reducing the amount of food available for nongame and game fish in the Truckee River. Thus, 
specific objectives of this proposal are to a) determine dietary preferences of a nonnative benthic 
consumer (crayfish) and b) determine if these invertebrates exert traditional “top down” control 
of native invertebrates through predatory interactions. Because of these factors, crayfish are an 
important aquatic invasive species to consider for management. Depending on the extent of 
control, policy makers should be able to develop mechanisms to control and manage this species. 
Research in the Midwestern US suggests that crayfish invaders in lakes and streams can be 
successfully controlled, however this will depend on the growth rates and reproductive life 
histories of the crayfish. Thus, the findings and application of this research will allow managers 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#198



3 

to determine potential strategies, costs, and environmental externalities to the ecology of the 
Truckee River as a result of management and conservation efforts related to these invasive 
species.  

II. Project Location 
This project will be conducted at three locations during two-time periods on the Truckee River in 
both California and Nevada, USA (Figure 1).  

III. Project Description 
Crayfish are dominant benthic consumers who alter benthic biodiversity, processes, and 
periphyton (Light 2003; Lodge et al. 1994; Stenroth and Nystrom 2003).  When present they are 
widely recognized as a key component of benthic energy flow and nutrient cycling in aquatic 
systems (Lodge et al. 1994; Evans-White et al. 2001). Crayfish strongly influence lake and river 
habitats and biota with their foraging habits and can therefore have both direct and indirect 
effects on trophic interactions in aquatic systems. Thus, once they invade crayfish can dominate 
freshwater ecosystems.  Annual crayfish production can exceed hundreds of kilograms per 
hectare, and biomass production and consumption often exceed the production and consumption 
of all other benthic invertebrates combined (Momot 1995; Whitledge and Rabeni 1997). 
Although crayfish are thought to be more carnivorous than herbivorous, when benthic 
invertebrates are in low densities, crayfish consume large amounts of periphyton and 
macrophytes in lotic and lentic ecosystems (Lodge et al. 1994, Twardochleb et al. 2013).  

The benthic habitats of rivers play an important role in a variety of processes. For example, 
periphyton communities utilize nutrients added to an ecosystem providing forage for fisheries 
production, and provide important habitat for native biodiversity (Vadeboncouer et al. 2002). 
Crayfish (Pacifastacus leniusculus) were introduced multiple times into the Truckee River 
Watershed and believed to be established by 1936, however until recently, studies of the benthic 
environment have largely been ignored in Truckee River. Research from other ecosystems 
suggest these consumers can control ecosystem dynamics in the benthic environments, and we 
hypothesize that crayfish may be depressing populations of invertebrates through direct 
predation and indirect impacts on periphyton on these communities.  

Crayfish are shredder feeders and signal crayfish in particular can feed directly on periphyton 
and benthic invertebrates; therefore, dietary preference is difficult to determine from standard gut 
content examination. To characterize the foodweb dynamics, crayfish trophic position, and 
dietary preference on a temporal and spatial scale, stable isotopes and amino acids (carbon and 
nitrogen) from periphyton, benthic invertebrates, and crayfish will be collected. Specifically, 
primary consumers, primary producers, and crayfish will be collected from 3 locations (Figure 1) 
during the growing season (May/June) and replicated at the same locations at the end of the 
growing season (October/November). At each location and sampling period, to account for 
dietary variation, 6 crayfish will be taken for 13C and 15N amino acid analysis and 20 samples 
(5 crayfish, 10 benthic invertebrates samples, and 5 periphyton samples) will be collected for 
13C and 15 N stable isotope analysis. Isotopic 13C has been used frequently to determine the 
flow of organic matter through food webs while 15N has been used to determine trophic levels 
in the ecosystem (Gu et al. 1994; Kling, 1994; Vander Zanden et al., 1999). 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#198



4 

 
Figure 1. Locations of study sites in the Truckee River CA. and NV., USA. Sampling sites are 

indicated with circles where amino acid, stable isotope, and habitat information will be 
taken.  

IV. Grant Priorities 
There is a clear need to develop strategies for effective management of aquatic invasive species 
in the Truckee River. This proposal lends directly towards the continued work with state and 
federal managers in the response to aquatic invasive species. This work will elucidate the role an 
aquatic invasive species plays in the Truckee River ecosystem, providing needed information for 
management control strategies. 

V. Permitting 
Collection permits will be submitted to both Nevada Department of Wildlife and the California 
Fish and Game for benthic invertebrate sampling on the Truckee River.  

VI. Future Land Use 
No known or foreseeable zoning, land use, or development plans will affect the proposed project.  

VII. Future Phases 
There are no future phases of the proposed project.  

VIII. Principles Involved 
Dr. John Umek will be the primary investigator on this project.  

IX. Staff Positions Involved 
No staff positions will be involved in the project.  

X. Volunteers Involved  
One to two volunteers will be involved in the project during field collections for a total of 4 to 6 
hours.  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#198



5 

XI. Time Line 

Milestone/Deliverables Start Date  End Date Description 
Objective 1. Field 
collections 
 

June 2018 
 

October 
2018 

Field collections crayfish.  Basic life history 
measurements of abundance, population size 
structure, and habitat measurements.  

Objective 2:  Laboratory 
Analysis 
 

August 
2018 

January* 
2019 

Analysis of Compound specific 13C and 
15N amino Acids and 13C and 15N stable 
isotopes. 

Objective 3: Analysis 
and report write up 

August 
2018 

May 2019 Statistical analysis of amino acids, stable 
isotopes, and report write up from statistical 
results. 

Present updates to 
relevant agencies 
(TMWA, USFWS, 
NDOW, etc.) 

October 
2018 

May 2019 Present brief updates to the TMWA, call a 
special meeting if needed to present 
information that may help managers develop 
control and management methods. Present 
findings at academic conferences and submit 
a manuscript to peer-reviewed journals. 

* Laboratory analysis may take longer depending on the availability of laboratory equipment.  

XII. Success 
Species invasions have occurred within the Truckee River Watershed for over 130 years. 
Recently however the river has received a series of invasions (invasive plants, warmwater and 
coldwater fishes) that threaten the rivers benthic environment and biodiversity. This study tests 
the hypotheses that crayfish control through predation processes, native benthic invertebrate 
abundance and richness. Depending on the extent of control, policy makers should be able to 
develop mechanisms to control and manage these invertebrates. For example, research in the 
Midwestern US suggests that crayfish invaders in lakes and streams can be successfully 
controlled, however, this will depend on the dietary behavior and of the crayfish. Thus, the 
findings and application of this research will allow managers to determine potential strategies, 
costs and environmental externalities to the ecology of Lake Tahoe as a result of management 
and conservation efforts related to these invasive species. 

XIII. Grant Match 
Match amount to be provided: $4,104 
Match details: Please provide the form of your matching funds. If match is made up of both cash and in- 

kind, fill in both sections. 
Match is :  

Cash $ 3,283
In-kind $ 821 

Note: Volunteer and in-kind hours may be calculated at a maximum rate 
of $20/hour per individual. Indirect cost may not be counted as match. 

For the cash portion of your match, is the funding already being held by the applicant for 
this project? Yes  X      No        

Description of 
matching 
funds/in-kind 
donations: 

The cash match has been secured with DRI using internal, non-federal, 
discretionary/unrestricted funds.  The in-kind of $821 is the 25% indirect costs 
associated with the cash match/DRI funds. 

ATTACHMENTS – will be provided if requested.

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#198



XIV. Project Budget

DESERT RESEARCH INSTITUTE COST ESTIMATE
Sponsor: Truckee River Fund
Title:  Determining the role of signal crayfish in the Truckee River foodweb 
Project Dates:  April 1, 2018 - March 31, 2019

Rate Cost Cost Cost
PERSONNEL (Salary/Benefits)

PI 37.78 1,568 2,508 4,076
0 0 0

TOTAL PERSONNELL 1,568 2,508 4,076

TRAVEL
Monthly Sampling

DHS Motor Pool - miles 0.40 0 200 200
DHS Motor Pool - days 35 0 175 175

TOTAL TRAVEL 0 375 375

OPERATING
Compound specific 13C and 15N ana 195 7,020 0 7,020
13C and 15N Stable Isotopes 8.5 1,020 0 1,020
Laboratory Supplies 0 200 200
Field Supplies 0 200 200

TOTAL OPERATING 8,040 400 8,440

CONSULTANT
0 0 0

TOTAL CONSULTANT 0 0 0

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS 9,608 3,283 12,891

MTDC 9,608 3,283 12,891

ICR (ON MTDC) 25% 2,402 821 3,223

TOTAL COST 12,010 4,104 16,114

TOTAL TRF 74.53% 12,010
TOTAL MATCH 25.47% 4,104

TOTAL 
PROJECT

YEAR 1

TRF DRI MATCH

 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#198



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#199



•

•
•
•
•

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#199



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#199



•

•

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#199



•
•
•

•

•
•
•

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#199



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#199



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the 

Truckee River Watershed Council
Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction

1 

Organization Name: Truckee River Watershed Council
Type: Non-Profit 501(c)(3) EIN# 91-1818748 Governmental entity? No
Address: P.O. Box 8568, Truckee, CA 96162
Project Name: Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction
Amount requested: $30,000 Website: ww.truckeeriverwc.org
This funding will be used to (complete this 
sentence with a max of 2 sentences): 

Fill a critical funding gap in phase 2 of construction of 
the Truckee Meadows Restoration project. This project 
will reduce erosion and sedimentation to the main stem 
Truckee River. 

Key People: Director: Lisa Wallace
Board 
Chair:

Michael Park

Project 
Contact: 

Name: Matt Freitas
Position: Program Manager
Phone: 530-550-8760, 6#
Fax: NA
Email: mfreitas@truckeeriverwc.org

Organization 
Mission: 

We bring the community together for the Truckee to restore, protect, and 
enhance the Truckee River watershed.

Has your 
organization received 
other grants from the 
Truckee River Fund? 
Yes X     No    
(use additional page if 
necessary)

If yes, 
Date awarded: October 2017
Project title: Truckee River Tributaries Sediment Reduction 

Project
Amount $165,000
Date awarded: March 2017
Project title: Big Chief, F4M Restoration Culvert Outflows
Amount: $50,000
Date awarded: September 2016
Project title: Donner Creek Concept Design

Amount: $40,000
Please see Attachment A for a full list of awarded grants

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION
Indicate the description that best fits the project you are proposing. Mark no more than three categories: 

A. Projects that improve bank or channel stabilization and decrease erosion.
B. Structural controls or Low Impact Development (LID) projects on tributaries and drainages to the
Truckee River where data supports evidence of pollution and/or sediments entering the Truckee
River.
C. Projects that remove pollution from the Truckee River.
D. Projects that remove or control invasive aquatic species or terrestrial invasive plant species that
are adverse to water supply.1

E. Other projects that meet the evaluation criteria.

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the 

Truckee River Watershed Council
Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction

 

2 
 

1. Specific project goals and measurable outcomes and how you will measure and report them. The 
goal of the Truckee Meadows Restoration Project is to restore an impaired meadow complex and ephemeral 
drainage, reducing erosion and excess sedimentation to the main stem Truckee River.  

With the support of the Truckee River Fund (grants #75 and #142), we have completed several assessments 
and studies of the project site (Balance Hydrologics Inc., 2010 & 2014) which have identified that historic and 
modern alterations have resulted in the loss and degradation of wetland/riparian habitat, loss of hydrologic
function, rapid runoff, and erosion and sedimentation to the Truckee River. To address these issues, we have 
completed restoration design, permitting and compliance, and phase 1 of construction.  

The measureable outcomes for the project are:
Restoration or enhancement of 15 acres of wetland habitat 
Improved hydrologic function the wetland complex and 0.75mile ephemeral drainage, a tributary to 
the Truckee River. 
Reduction in excessive erosion from upland, wetland, and instream areas supporting attainment of the 
Truckee River Sediment Total Daily Maximum Load (TMDL; Lahontan Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, 2008) 
Reduced stormwater runoff rate and increased attenuation of high flows 

These outcomes will be monitored via the project’s pre/post monitoring program which includes groundwater, 
surface water, vegetation, and rapid assessment parameters. 

This request is to fill a critical funding gap in phase 2 construction.

2. Project location. The project site is located east of downtown Truckee, CA on Brockway Road. The 
meadow complex occupies a broad terrace above the Truckee River. It is fed by two springs, and drains 
northeast via an ephemeral drainage to the Truckee River. The project addresses the impairments on meadow 
and drainage, so there are 5 distinct work areas (“sites”) between the meadow and the Truckee River (see 
attached location map).  

3. Project description.  
Plans and Previous Work. The project was initiated in 2010 when TRWC convened a partnership of 8 public 
and private landowners that collectively owned the entire wetland complex and ephemeral drainage (i.e. from 
the springs to the Truckee River). Working with that partnership, we completed a feasibility study and 
assessment, four years of pre-project monitoring, 100% restoration designs, and environmental compliance 
and permitting.  In 2017, we completed phase 1 construction, which included sites 2 to 5 (from Brockway Rd 
to the Truckee River; see attached map).  

The Problem. The issues facing the wetland and ephemeral drainage were various, but most centered around 
altered hydrology and land-use impacts. Our pre-project studies (Balance Hydrologics Inc. 2010 & 2014) 
found rapid runoff from the meadow due to constructed ditches that drained the site. This contributed to 
dewatering of the meadow and limited attenuation of high flows. Various portions of the wetland had also 
been filled over the last 60 years. Downstream, along the ephemeral drainage (Sites 3 and 5), land-uses had 
altered the flow path and the Truckee River floodplain. Coupled with the relatively rapid run-off from the 
meadow upstream, these alterations caused significant erosion impacting water quality in the Truckee River. 

The Solution. The overall restoration approach is centered on fixing the surface water hydrology. Within the 
meadow (Site 2), we filled the constructed ditches that promoted rapid runoff; dispersing flows across the 
meadow surface. We also removed the artificial fill from several locations in the wetland. Phase 2 of 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the 

Truckee River Watershed Council
Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction

 

3 
 

construction will employ similar tactics at Site 1. Downstream of the meadow (Sites 3-5) the project restored 
several sections of the ephemeral drainage. This included re-establishing a historic channel, installing a 
sediment detention basin, and restoring the Truckee River floodplain topography and hydrology.  

Overall, this approach will slow surface water within the upstream meadow, enhancing that habitat and 
attenuating high flows. This promotes more natural hydrology in the downstream ephemeral channel, where 
the channel and floodplain enhancements will reduce sediment erosion and promote deposition before 
reaching the main stem Truckee River. 

Filling a Critical Funding Gap. In the years preceding phase 1 construction, TRWC raised over $1.5million in 
construction funding for this project from cost share from project partners, the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (CDFW), and several foundations grants. 

However, the record breaking 2016/2017 winter created site conditions which required additional construction 
costs during the first phase of construction. We now have a critical funding gap for phase 2 construction that 
we seek to fill. 

The $30,000 requested in this proposal leverages a much larger result. The strength of this project is its 
comprehensive nature. It addresses the issues facing this entire sub-basin and the Truckee River. Thus by 
supporting phase 2 construction, this proposal supports the larger restoration effort, including the water quality 
benefits.  

4. Grant priorities. The project addresses:

II. Watershed Improvements. The project will decrease sedimentation to the Truckee River and support 
attainment of the a 303(d) listed TMDL pollutant to the Truckee River. 

III. Local Stormwater Improvements. Due it is urban surroundings, the project site receives stormwater 
inputs from adjacent roads, residential, and commercial developments. The project’s approach and 
engineered solutions will provide natural treatments for those inputs before reaching the main stem of 
the Truckee River. 

VII. Meet Multiple Objectives. The project meets the watershed and water quality objectives listed above. 
It also benefits wetland and instream habitat, native fish and wildlife species, flood attenuation, and 
carbon sequestration. 

VIII. Leverage Stakeholder Assets and Participation. The project has leveraged stakeholder participation 
and assets from the outset. Project partners (public agencies, governments, and private landowners) 
were critical in starting and funding this project. All have contributed cost-share to the project (total 
$300,000) and participated for 7 years. 

5. Permitting. All environmental compliance (CEQA) and permits have been completed. The Town of 
Truckee is the CEQA lead. All project permits have been obtained including Section 401 water quality 
certification, Construction General Stormwater Permit, Lake and Streambed Alteration Permit, Section 404 
Permit, Grading Permit, and Development/Minor Use Permit.  

6. Future Land Use. There are no foreseeable zoning, land use, or development plans that will affect the 
project or project site. All landowners are project partners and have committed to the restoration. 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the 

Truckee River Watershed Council
Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction

 

4 
 

7. Future Phases of the project: The anticipated future phases of the project (i.e. post-project 
monitoring and adaptive management) are already funded by grants from the CDFW and National Fish and 
Wildlife Foundation.   

8. Principals involved in leading or coordinating the project or activity. Matt Freitas will be the lead 
from TRWC. He is responsible for coordinating project activities with project landowners. TRWC has 
received project approval from all eight project landowners (provided to TRF with grant #142).   

9. Number of staff positions involved in project: Matt Freitas and Lisa Wallace (TRWC) will work 
part time on this project.  

10. Number of volunteers involved in project and an estimated number of volunteer hours.
Volunteers participated in native replanting during phase 1 construction. Approximately 20 volunteers (80 
person hours) will participate in the same activity as a Truckee River Day project in 2018.

11. Time Line. The project timeline is included below. Please note that for the sake of clarity and context, 
the timeline includes several completed project tasks as well as the current and upcoming work. There are no 
anticipated delays for phase 2 construction or completing post-project monitoring and adaptive management.  

12. Success. Post- project monitoring will confirm habitat enhancement, restoration of hydrology, 
reductions in sedimentation, and attenuation of runoff. This monitoring program is already funded by outside 
sources. Early observations following phase 1 construction suggest the project has been successful towards 
these goals thus far.   

Task Start Date Completion Date

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

w
or

k

Pre-project monitoring Sept 2015 Sept 2017
Environmental compliance & 
permitting

June 2015 Sept 2017

Restoration design March 2015 April 2017
Construction phase 1 Sept 2017 Nov 2017

C
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 
up

co
m

in
g 

w
or

k Construction phase 2 Sept 2018 Oct 2018
Post-project monitoring Nov 2017 Nov 2019
Adaptive management Nov 2017 Nov 2020
Stakeholder coordination and project 
management

2010 2020

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the 

Truckee River Watershed Council
Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction

 

5 
 

13. Grant match.  

Match amount to be provided: $47,750
Match 
details:

Match is:
Cash $47,750
In-kind None

For the cash portion of your match, is the funding already being held by 
the applicant for this project? Yes

Description 
of matching 
funds/in-
kind 
donations:

The matching funds are from the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (CDFW) Wetland Restoration for Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
Reduction Grant Program. Grant Agreement #P1496010. Grant amount 
$1,495,551. 

Matching funds are allocated for personnel services, restoration design, 
pre-project monitoring, environmental compliance/permits, restoration 
construction, and post-project monitoring, and adaptive management. 
TRWC will manage funds provided by the CDFW and by the Truckee 
River Fund to ensure maximum project efficiency and cost effectiveness. 

Citations 
Balance Hydrologics. 2010. Preliminary assessment of restoration options for the Hilltop-Ponderosa wetland 

complex, Town of Truckee, Nevada County, California. Prepared for the Truckee River Watershed 
Council.  

Balance Hydrologics. 2014. Truckee Wetlands Restoration Partnership Conceptual Design Basis Report. 
Prepared for the Truckee River Watershed Council.

Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board. 2008. Total maximum daily load for sediment. Middle 
Truckee River Watershed. Placer, Nevada, and Sierra Counties. Includes Gray and Bronco Creeks. 

Attachments
A. Extended list of past TRWC projects funded by the Truckee River Fund. 
B. Truckee Meadows Restoration Project: Location Map and Site Photos 

Documents noted below are available and can be submitted upon request.  

Last audited financial statements if your organization has been audited  
List of Board of Directors
Copy of agency’s IRS 501(c)(3) Tax Determination Letter 
Copy of the agency’s most recent IRS Form 990 

 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the 

Truckee River Watershed Council
Truckee Meadows Restoration Project- Phase 2 Construction

 

6 
 

 
BUDGET

ITEM TRF $ OTHER FUNDING NAME
MATCH 

$ TOTAL
Project management and reporting $1,800 CDFW GHG Reduction Grant $9,520 $11,320
Environmental compliance measures $1,080 CDFW GHG Reduction Grant $10,000 $11,080
Restoration earthwork $20,000 CDFW GHG Reduction Grant $18,100 $38,100
Engineered log features $7.120 CDFW GHG Reduction Grant $4,680 $11,800
Native seeding and planting CDFW GHG Reduction Grant $5,450 $5,450
Totals: $30,000 $47,750 $77,750
 
 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the Truckee River Watershed Council

Collaborative solutions to protect, enhance and restore the Truckee River watershed

Attachment A 
Continued list of grants to TRWC from the Truckee River Fund 

 
 
Date awarded: September 2016 
Project title: Donner Creek Bank Stabilization Downstream of Railroad Culvert Final Design 
Amount of Award $90,000 
Date awarded: March 2017 
Project title: F4M Restoration Culvert Outflow  
Amount of Award $50,000 
Date awarded: September  2016 
Project title: Donner Creek Concept Designs 
Amount of Award $40,000 
Date awarded: September  2016 
Project title: Donner Creek Bank Stabilization 
Amount of Award $92,000 
Date awarded: April 2016 
Project title: Johnson Canyon West #2 
Amount of Award $67,000 
Date awarded: October 2015 
Project title: Johnson Canyon West #1 
Amount of Award $25,000 
Date awarded: September 2014 
Project title: Donner Lake Watershed Assessment 
Amount of Award $70,000 
Date awarded: March 2014 
Project title: Truckee Wetlands Restoration – Phase 3,4, & 5 – Design 
Amount of Award $50,000 
Date awarded: October 2013 
Project title: Truckee River Big Chief Corridor –Restoration 
Amount of Award: $150,000 
Date awarded: March 2013 
Project title: Truckee River Big Chief Corridor – Implementation 
Amount of Award $11,000 
Date awarded: March 2013 
Project title: Middle Martis Wetland Restoration – planning and design 
Amount of Award: $120,000 
Date awarded: August 2012 
Project title: Phase 2 Coldstream Canyon Floodplain Restoration 
Amount of Award: $196,000 
Date awarded: March 2012 
Project title: Lacey Creek and Meadow Assessment 
Amount of Award $50,000 
Date awarded: March 2012 
Project title: Negro Canyon Restoration – pre-project monitoring 
Amount of Award: $25,000 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



Grant application to the Truckee River Fund
from the Truckee River Watershed Council

Collaborative solutions to protect, enhance and restore the Truckee River watershed

Date awarded: October 2010 
Project title: Coldstream Canyon Floodplain Restoration Project 
Amount of Award: $135,000 
Date awarded: August 2010 
Project title: Truckee Wetlands Restoration Project – Phase 2 
Amount of Award: $40,000 
Date awarded: July 2006 
Project title: “This Drains to the Truckee River” Storm Drain Stenciling Pilot Project 
Amount of Award: $9,300 
 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#200



 

Si
te

 1
– 

To
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 2
01

8 
Si

te
 2

– 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
20

17
 

Si
te

 3
– 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

20
17

 

Si
te

 5
– 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

20
17

 

Tr
uc

ke
e 

M
ea

do
w

s 
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
M

ap
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t B
 

60
0 

fe
et

 

 N
 

02
-2

3-
18

 T
R

F 
A

ge
nd

a 
Ite

m
 6

 
#2

00



Fi
gu

re
s 1

 a
nd

 2
: T

hi
s i

s S
ite

 1
, t

he
 lo

ca
Ɵo

n 
of

 p
ha

se
 2

 co
ns

tr
uc

Ɵo
n 

of
 th

e 
Tr

uc
ke

e 
M

ea
do

w
s R

es
to

ra
Ɵo

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t (
fa

ci
ng

 e
as

t a
nd

 w
es

t r
es

pe
cƟ

ve
ly

). 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
w

ill
 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 fi

ll 
a 

cr
iƟ

ca
l f

un
di

ng
 ca

p 
fo

r c
on

st
ru

cƟ
on

 a
t t

hi
s s

ite
. I

t w
ill

 su
pp

or
t t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pr

oj
ec

t w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 re

du
ce

 e
ro

sio
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

ta
Ɵo

n 
to

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
st

em
 T

ru
ck

ee
 R

iv
er

.  

Fi
gu

re
s 3

 a
nd

 4
: S

ite
 2

, b
ef

or
e 

(F
ig

 3
) a

nd
 a

Ōe
r (

Fi
g 

4)
 p

ha
se

 1
 co

ns
tr

uc
Ɵo

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t r

em
ov

ed
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
20

00
CY

 o
f fi

ll 
fro

m
 th

e 
w

et
la

nd
 a

nd
 fi

lle
d 

a 
co

n-
st

ru
ct

ed
 d

itc
h,

 d
isp

er
sin

g 
an

d 
slo

w
in

g 
flo

w
s o

n 
th

e 
m

ea
do

w
 su

rfa
ce

. T
hi

s w
ill

 co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 le
ss

 se
di

m
en

t l
os

s, 
re

du
ce

d 
ru

no
ff 

ra
te

s, 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

aƩ
en

ua
Ɵo

n 
of

 h
ig

h 
flo

w
s. 

 

02
-2

3-
18

 T
R

F 
A

ge
nd

a 
Ite

m
 6

 
#2

00



Fi
gu

re
s 5

 a
nd

 6
: S

ite
 3

, b
ef

or
e 

(F
ig

 5
) a

nd
 a

Ōe
r (

Fi
g 

6)
 p

ha
se

 1
 co

ns
tr

uc
Ɵo

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 cr

ea
te

d 
th

is 
de

te
nƟ

on
 b

as
in

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 sl

ow
 st

re
am

flo
w

 a
nd

 fo
rc

e 
de

po
siƟ

on
 o

f s
ed

i-
m

en
t b

ef
or

e 
co

nƟ
nu

in
g 

do
w

ns
tr

ea
m

 to
 th

e 
Tr

uc
ke

e 
Ri

ve
r. 

Up
st

re
am

 o
f t

hi
s s

ite
, t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 re

st
or

ed
 a

 h
ist

or
ic 

ch
an

ne
l, 

bl
oc

ki
ng

 a
n 

er
od

in
g 

ar
Ɵfi

cia
l c

ha
nn

el
 a

cr
os

s a
 ro

ad
. 

Fi
gu

re
s 7

 a
nd

 8
: S

ite
 5

 o
n 

th
e 

flo
od

pl
ai

n 
of

 th
e 

Tr
uc

ke
e 

Ri
ve

r, 
be

fo
re

 (F
ig

 7
) a

nd
 a

Ōe
r (

Fi
g 

8)
 p

ha
se

 1
 co

ns
tr

uc
Ɵo

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 re

m
ov

ed
 a

 co
nc

re
te

 li
ne

d 
di

tc
h 

(F
ig

 7
), 

re
st

or
in

g 
th

e 
flo

od
pl

ai
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s. 
Th

es
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 d
isp

er
se

 a
nd

 sl
ow

 su
rfa

ce
 w

at
er

. T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

up
st

re
am

 o
f t

hi
s s

ite
.  

02
-2

3-
18

 T
R

F 
A

ge
nd

a 
Ite

m
 6

 
#2

00



Cover Sheet Date: 2/5/18 
Organization Name:  National Forest Foundation 
Type: 501(c)(3) EIN# 52-1786332 Governmental entity? No 
Address:  3079 Harrison Ave #18, South Lake Tahoe, CA 96150 
Project Name:  Perazzo Meadows Watershed Restoration & Erosion Control Project 
Amount requested: $189,099.40 Website: www.nationalforests.org 
This funding will be used to (complete this 
sentence with a max of 2 sentences): 

Restore the upper watershed by adding erosion controls 
along 3.5 miles of Henness Pass Road and restoring natural 
flow regimes in the greater Perazzo meadow area to 
reduce pollutants to the Little Truckee River and Stampede 
Reservoir. 

Key People: Director:  Mary Mitsos, NFF President 

Board 
Chair: 

 Craig R. Barrett 

Project 
Contact: 

Name:  Kim Carr 

Position:  California Program Director 

Phone: (530) –902-6416

Fax:  N/A 

Email:  kcarr@nationalforests.org 

Organization Mission: The National Forest Foundation, chartered by Congress, engages Americans in 
community-based and national programs that promote the health and public 
enjoyment of the 193-million-acre National Forest System, and administers 
private gifts of funds and land for the benefit of the National Forests. 

Has your organization 
received other grants 
from the Truckee River 
Fund? 
Yes No 
(use additional page if 
necessary) 

If yes, 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION 
Indicate the description that best fits the project you are proposing. Mark no more than three categories: 

A. Projects that improve bank or channel stabilization and decrease erosion.
B. Structural controls or Low Impact Development (LID) projects on tributaries and drainages to the Truckee
River where data supports evidence of pollution and/or sediments entering the Truckee River.
C. Projects that remove pollution from the Truckee River.
D. Projects that remove or control invasive aquatic species or terrestrial invasive plant species that are
adverse to water supply.3 

E. Other projects that meet the evaluation criteria.

Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 

1 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

 
 

NARRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Provide answers for all 11 sections below; use the numbers and topics (in bold) to label each section in your response. 
Your application is limited to 5 narrative pages, including the cover sheet. Your budget is page 6. All projects are 
required to have measurable outcomes: 

 
1. Specific project goals and measurable outcomes and how you will measure and report them. 

 
The specific goals of the project are to:

1) Improve water quality for on-site and downstream beneficial uses by reducing erosion, sediment
loading, and other pollutants to the Little Truckee River and Stampede Reservoir. 

2) Increase water storage in the upper Truckee River watershed by restoring the floodplain and 
hydrologic function of the meadow tributaries to the Little Truckee River.  

3) Improve riparian and aquatic habitat for sensitive species. 

Progress towards achieving these goals will be measured and reported through the following metrics: 
miles of road improved, number of culverts installed, number of drainage dips installed, number of low 
water crossings installed, miles of stream channel enhanced/restored, and acres of riparian meadow 
enhanced/restored (Appendix I). 

2. Project location. 
 
The proposed project is located in Sierra County, California, roughly 10 miles south of Sierraville, and 
roughly 15 miles north of Truckee, about 5 miles west of Highway 89.  Nearly the entire project is 
located on U.S. Forest Service lands, in the Sierraville Ranger District. This request for funds is for 
meadow restoration in the greater Perazzo Meadow area, and erosion control measures along Henness 
Pass Road (a designated California Historical Landmark). The project is focused on enhancing and 
protecting water quality and water resources of the Little Truckee River, a tributary to the Truckee River 
(303d listed for sediment). 

3. Project description. Include site map and aerial photos if applicable/possible. Maps and photos must fit on 8- 
1/2” x 11” paper. Cite any studies that support your project. 

This project will reduce the potential for sedimentation to the water system by stabilizing eroding areas
and capturing sediment and other pollutants at its source, along Henness Road. In addition, improve the 
quality of surface water runoff, restore floodplain function in the meadow tributaries to the Little Truckee 
River, and improve and increase the riparian and aquatic habitat in the area. Please see Appendix II for a 
map of the project site with respect to Henness Pass Road, the Little Truckee River, and other recently 
completed restoration efforts. 

The project will restore natural flow to four small intermittent streams and some perennial springs 
flowing from the upper watershed onto a terraced meadow area. The streams were historically diverted 
from their natural path, causing disruption of the natural flow regime and degradation of the meadow. 
Henness Pass Road, the primary disturbance to the meadow system, maintained by Sierra County, runs 
through the meadow and a ditch along the road has intercepted the flow from a perennial stream on the 
terrace. The flow crosses under the road in an unnatural location which cuts through the terrace above the 

2  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

Little Truckee River floodplain. Excessive erosion continues to supply sediment to the river from this 
site. This project will fill existing unnatural eroded channels to reconnect the flow back into the natural 
channels, repair a head cut along one of the channels, and install culverts in multiple locations to 
reconnect the streams across the Henness Pass Road, to restore the natural historic flow regime. The road 
bed will need to be raised in multiple locations to allow for appropriate drainage across the road. 
Restoring the natural flow regimes will improve roughly 80 acres of meadow, improving the water 
storage capabilities of the meadow and surrounding ecosystem. 

In addition, the project will reduce sediment and erosion along three and one half miles of the Henness 
Pass Road from Webber Lake to the current terminus of this portion of the road. The road is an historic 
wagon road that never had designed drainage and erosion control measures. The road disrupts the natural 
flow regime and hydrologic function of the greater Perazzo meadow. There are many areas in the road 
that capture and concentrate surface and shallow subsurface runoff creating erosion and supplying 
sediment directly to tributary drainages to the Little Truckee River. Treatments to reduce sediment 
include:  

Reshaping the road prism to improve drainage and reduce water capture.
Adding cross drains to convey water across road at a frequency designed to prevent 
concentration of flow getting high enough to initiate erosion. These include:

o Drainage dips. 
o Rocked drainage dips. 
o Low water crossings. 
o Culverts. 

Filling and draining puddled areas of the road. 
Placing road rock on highly erosive sections of the road. 

Please see Appendix III for a site specific map of planned actions within the Perazzo Meadow Unit 5, 
and ~1 mile of Henness Pass Road. An additional 2.5 miles of road (not pictured) will be treated as 
appropriate.  

While the project will benefit from all proposed actions being funded concurrently and implemented 
together, it is possible for the project to be separated into phases if needed, as explained in Narrative 
Requirement (7), below. 
 

4. Grant priorities. Explain how the proposed project advances the TRF’s grant priorities (page 2 of the cover 
sheet); refer to the priorities by number in your narrative. 
 

The project fulfills grant priorities (II), (III), (VII), and (VIII).  Through retrofitting and adding 
appropriate erosion control infrastructure and restoring natural flow regimes, the project will mitigate 
storm water runoff and reduce sediment discharges to the Little Truckee River and subsequently
Stampede Reservoir. The project adopts an innovative planning approach by combining road 
improvements with complimentary meadow restoration to maximize efficiency with project 
implementation and costs, and provide sustainable, lasting benefits. Such multifaceted actions will result 
in significant water quality improvement to both local and downstream waters, and advance the 
resilience of the overall Truckee River watershed.
 
The project meets multiple objectives, specifically (A), (B), and (C) listed on page 1 on the Truckee 

3  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

River Fund 2018 Request for Proposals. The project will also improve riparian and aquatic habitat, 
providing potential benefit to numerous at-risk species in the area, including the Sierra Yellow Legged 
Frog, Lahontan Cutthroat Trout, and Willow Flycatcher.  

Finally, the project will leverage support and/or assets from the Tahoe National Forest (USDA Forest 
Service), Sierra County, and Sierra Valley Resource Conservation District. Match funding will be 
provided by the Tahoe National Forest and Sierra County through in-kind services. The project enjoys 
additional support from the Sierra Valley Resource Conservation District. Please see attached Letters of 
Support from the Tahoe National Forest and Sierra Resource Conservation District, as well as a Sierra 
County Board Resolution, indicating authorization of the project. 

5. Permitting. Provide a permitting schedule for your project along with your plan for getting the required 
permits. Be sure to include the cost of permitting as a line item in your budget. 

 
Additional permitting for road improvements will not be required. Permits for meadow restoration work 
(401,404) are anticipated to be obtained in the Summer 2018 at the latest. See Appendix IV, below. 
 

6. Future land use. List any known or foreseeable zoning, land use, or development plans that may affect your 
proposed project. 

 
Due to federal land ownership, there are no foreseeable changes to zoning, land use, or development 
plans that may affect the proposed project. 
 

7. If future phases of the project will be needed, identify anticipated sources of funding. 
 
This project is the last phase of the greater Perazzo Meadows Restoration effort and future phases of the 
project are not anticipated. That said, the proposed actions within the project could be phased or 
prioritized if the full funding request is not met. For instance, the funding could be used to implement 
road work only, meadow work only, or a combination of both, dependent upon the funder’s preferences. 
 

8. Principals involved in leading or coordinating the project or activity. 
 
National Forest Foundation: Kim Carr, California Program Director; Evan Ritzinger, California Program 
Associate

USDA Forest Service, Tahoe National Forest: Quentin Youngblood, District Ranger, Sierraville Ranger 
District

Sierra County: Tim Beal, Director of Public Works, Planning and Roads 
 

9. Number of staff positions involved in project: Fulltime Part-time (“Fulltime” means 100% of 
their staff position will be dedicated to this project; “part-time” means only a portion of their staff position 
will be dedicated to this project) 

 
The project anticipates 6 part-time staff members: 4 Equipment Operators, 1 Road Superintendent, and 1 
Forest Service Project Supervisor. Dedicated hours will vary by staff member, however, all staff 
members are expected to work on multiple projects. As a result, no staff member will be committing 
100% of their time to this project.
 

4  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

10. Number of volunteers involved in project and an estimated number of volunteer hours. 
 
Utilizing volunteers has been, and will continue to be, an important aspect of forest management in the 
region. However, due to the required skillset and safety hazards involved in the proposed actions, this 
particular project will not involve volunteers. 
 

11. Time Line of Project. List key dates and include project milestones. Note: Be realistic in your estimate of dates 
and milestones. List any factors that may cause a delay in implementing and/or completing the project. 

 
An anticipated timeline for the Perazzo Meadows Watershed Restoration & Erosion Control Project is 
detailed in Appendix IV, below. Meadow Restoration work will begin in 2018. Road improvements do 
not need further permitting and may begin as soon as funding becomes available. Factors that may delay 
the project include, but are not limited to: permitting, weather, and contractor availability. In developing 
a timeline, an effort was made to set ambitious but realistic goals, while at the same time accounting for 
potential setbacks that could hinder progress. 
 

12. Success. Tell the committee how we will know you succeeded in what you proposed to do. 
 

There are multiple ways this project may measure the success of its proposed actions. First, the project 
will use the measureable outcomes detailed in Narrative Requirement (1), above. The project will also 
measure success through continued implementation and effectiveness monitoring, pursuant with the 
Perazzo Meadows Watershed Restoration and Grazing Allotment Management Project Environmental 
Assessment and 1990 Tahoe National Forest Land and Resource Management Plan.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

Project Budget: Perazzo Meadows Watershed Restoration & Erosion Control Project. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget Item Decription TRF $ In-kind Match $ Total

Permitting & Design/Engineering US Forest Service 5,000.00$       5,000.00$            
Labor - paid Sierra County 34,726.55$     34,726.55$          
Traffic Control Sierra County 1,800.00$       1,800.00$            
FS Project Supervisor 2,510.00$         US Forest Service 1,000.00$       3,510.00$            
Materials 79,170.60$       US Forest Service 9,000.00$       88,170.60$          
Mobilization 7,200.00$         7,200.00$            
Trucking costs 10,560.00$       10,560.00$          
Equipment Costs 51,838.92$       51,838.92$          
Indirect 22,691.93$       22,691.93$          
Implementation Staff Time 15,127.95$       15,127.95$          
TOTAL 189,099.40$     51,526.55$     240,625.95$     
(% match) (27%)

6  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

Grant Match 
Match amount to be provided: $ 51,526.55 
Match details: Please provide the form of your matching funds. If match is made up of both cash and in- 

kind, fill in both sections. 
 

Match is: 
Cash $ 
In-kind $ 51,526.55 

 
Note: Volunteer and in-kind hours may be calculated at a maximum rate 
of $20/hour per individual. Indirect cost may not be counted as match. 

 
For the cash portion of your match, is the funding already being held by the applicant for 
this project? Yes       No    

Description of 
matching 
funds/in-kind 
donations:  

Labor (Road Superintendent, Equipment Operators, Forest Service Project 
Supervisor), traffic control equipment, permitting, design/engineering and materials. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
You may be asked to submit the following attachments via email. If you are asked to submit the attachments, clearly 
label each file with your organization’s name. If you do not have the ability to email them, place each of the items listed 
below on a separate page and submit just one copy. 
 
Nonprofits submit: 

Last audited financial statements if your organization has been audited 
List of Board of Directors 
Copy of agency’s IRS 501(c)(3) Tax Determination Letter 
Copy of the agency’s most recent IRS Form 990 

 
Governmental entities submit: 

Departmental budget in lieu of audited financial statements 

7  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

Appendices:

 

 
Appendix II: A map depicting the Perazzo Meadows Watershed Restoration & Erosion Control Project among multiple 
restoration projects in the greater Perazzo Meadows area.  Actions pertaining to this grant request will be encompassed within
Terrace Meadow: Site #5 outlined with a black box (expanded in Appendix II, below). All other surrounding project sites (#1, 
#2, #3, #4, and #6 ) have been completed or are fully funded and in progress.
 
 

Metric
Estimated Total in 
Project Area

Miles of road improved 3.5
Culverts installed 15+
Drainage dips installed 60+
Low water crossings installed 4-6
Miles of stream channel enhanced/restored 2
Acres of riparian meadow enhanced/restored 80

Little Truckee River 

Henness Pass Road 

Appendix I: Anticipated outcomes of the Perazzo Meadows Watershed 
Restoration & Erosion Control Project

8  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



 

  
Appendix III: A site specific map of the Perazzo Meadows Watershed Restoration & Erosion Control Project, detailing 
planned actions to reduce erosion along Henness Pass Rd and restore natural hydrologic connectivity in the adjacent meadow. 
Roughly 1 mile of road is shown. An additional 2.5 miles of road will be treated using similar actions under the proposed 
project plan.
 
 

  

 
*No additional permitting is necessary for road improvements; the chart reflects the anticipated timeline for 
obtaining permits for meadow restoration only (401, 404).

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Winter 
2018

Spring 
2018

Summer 
2018

Fall 
2018

Winter 
2019

Spring 
2019

Summer 
2019

Fall
 2019

Permitting*
Road Improvements
Meadow Restoration

Appendix IV: Anticipated timeline for the completion of project tasks associated with the Perazzo Meadows 
Watershed Restoration & Erosion Control Project. 

Henness Pass Road 

Little Truckee River 

Meadow Tributaries 

9  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#201



50 Washington Street, Suite 300, Reno, NV 89503 
Phone 775-333-5499  //  Fax 775-333-5487  // nevadafund.org 

Connecting people who care with causes that matter. 

Cover Sheet Date: 
Organization Name: 
Type: 501(c)(3) EIN# Governmental entity? Y/N 
Address: 
Project Name: 
Amount requested: Website: 
This funding will be used to (complete this 
sentence with a max of 2 sentences): 
Key People: Director: 

Board 
Chair: 
Project 
Contact: 

Name: 

Position: 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Email: 

Organization Mission: 

Has your organization 
received other grants 
from the Truckee River 
Fund?  
Yes           No   
(use additional page if 
necessary) 

If yes, 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 
Date awarded: 
Project title: 
Amount of Award: 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION 
Indicate the description that best fits the project you are proposing. Mark no more than three categories: 

A. Projects that improve bank or channel stabilization and decrease erosion.
B. Structural controls or Low Impact Development (LID) projects on tributaries and drainages to the Truckee
River where data supports evidence of pollution and/or sediments entering the Truckee River.
C. Projects that remove pollution from the Truckee River.
D. Projects that remove or control invasive aquatic species or terrestrial invasive plant species that are
adverse to water supply.3

E. Other projects that meet the evaluation criteria.

NARRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

3 For proposals related to weed control/eradication, contact Lauren Renda at the Community Foundation of Western 
Nevada for additional criteria. lrenda@nevadafund.org; 775-333-5499. 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#202

/N



1 

Trout Creek Pocket Park Stewardship & Service Learning Program 

1. Specific project goals and measurable outcomes and how you will measure and report them.
Include Local Youth in Environmental Education & Stewardship Projects

Mountain Area Preservation (MAP) seeks to introduce a youth focus to our work and provide Truckee 
students with a hands-on educational experience to the benefits of environmental restoration, 
stewardship and community service. This project will combine two existing community assets, the Trout 
Creek Pocket Park (TCPP) and the Tahoe Truckee Unified School District's (TTUSD) Downtown Historical 
Tour to bring awareness to the many benefits the park provides. Through collaboration, MAP intends to 
enhance the historical tour with a place for students to see firsthand how interconnected our 
environment is, from the water to the land to the air and to our people and wildlife. The park creates an 
outdoor classroom with picnic tables and benches, allowing students to sit, learn and engage in 
watershed restoration. They will see Trout Creek as it flows along the park and learn how it is a tributary 
of the Truckee River. Last year during MAP's strategic planning process, we highlighted the importance 
of including youth education in our outreach. We see a natural connection between promoting the 
many benefits of the Pocket Park and engaging our local youth. As a first step towards establishing the 
park as a stop on the Downtown Tour, MAP will work with the Sierra Expeditionary Learning School 
(SELS), a charter school within the TTUSD. SELS has two classes with both second and third graders who 
participate every other year in the Downtown Tour. We believe we will have success creating an ongoing 
program throughout the district if we start small and pilot the program with SELS. Once the program 
takes root in fall 2018, we will work with TTUSD to include the other schools in the district, starting with 
Truckee Elementary in fall 2019. We will be able to measure our outcomes in fall 2018 upon completion 
of the first tours to the Pocket Park. Fifty students will participate in the tour in addition to the two 
teachers and multiple parent volunteers. Students will be given a pre- and post-evaluation to determine 
if their knowledge of the environmental topics covered has increased. Teachers at SELS and the parent 
volunteers will also be supplied evaluations to provide feedback. We will utilize this information to 
enhance portions of the program as needed. MAP will report on the outcome of our first educational 
program in our monthly Enews blast to our database of 2,000+ people. 

Promote the Park & Increase Awareness for Environmental Protection & Restoration

With financial support from the Truckee River Fund in 2016, the Pocket Park was completed in 
September 2016. Prior to completion, the site was a neglected, environmental disaster. Compacted dirt, 
crumbling asphalt and garbage covered much of the area. Dirty snow, road debris and toxic runoff was 
deposited along Trout Creek, a tributary of the Truckee River and source for drinking water for Truckee, 
Tahoe and Reno. The site cleanup was extensive and expensive. MAP fundraised every dollar to execute 
and complete the project with a goal of turning the park into a Sustainable Site featuring native drought 
tolerant landscaping, permeable pavers, a storm water drainage facility and a solar light fixture. We 
provided garbage and recycling collection, a mutt-mitt dispenser, an interpretive kiosk with panels done 
by a local artist featuring the flora and fauna of the area as well as the watershed path the creek takes 
from its headwaters to the Truckee River. A hand forged Art Bike Rack serves as a place to park your bike 
and a work of art to admire. Truckee's rich Native American history is noted in the art panel depicting 
how the Washoe Tribe utilized local pinon pine nuts and goji berries for their diet. An authentic Washoe 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#202



2 
 

grinding stone has been relocated to the park and commemorated with a plaque honoring its cultural 
value. Topics such as infill, environmental restoration, native landscaping, flora, fauna, watershed 
ecology, sustainable design and stewardship will be covered in the experiential education program. Each 
student will receive a bilingual activity sheet to take home with educational themes and games to 
reinforce the program. This small park is a model for successful site rehabilitation. Its addition to 
Truckee's downtown tour will be an invaluable resource to our youth population. We will measure 
success with our ability to promote the Pocket Park with the increased visitor numbers that will occur as 
the project gains traction throughout the school district, and the participating students’ increased 
knowledge of environmental topics. Upon completion of the fall 2018 tour, we will have added at least 
60 new visitors to the park and if we are successful with the addition of Truckee Elementary School’s 
third grade classes that will add an additional 125 new visitors. A key outcome of this project is the 
creation of a rack card by the students highlighting the park’s attributes. This card will not only be 
distributed at the schools but at the Truckee Train Depot, site of the Town’s Visitor Center. This will 
increase the number of visitors who will be educated by the interpretive facets at the park. Additionally, 
at least 75% of student participants will increase their knowledge of environmental topics by 25%.   

Increase Cultural Awareness & Diversity Around Environmental Stewardship  

The Pocket Park offers a wonderful opportunity to cross cultural lines and open up a field of study to a 
population that is often marginalized and left out of land use planning conversations. Including the park 
on the school tour will allow our Latino community to be exposed to topics such as watershed 
stewardship and environmental restoration. As we expand our scope of outreach to include people from 
diverse backgrounds, we will see more young people who care about the natural world around them 
and they in turn will share this knowledge with their friends and family. MAP will work with TTUSD to 
create project materials that are written in Spanish and culturally sensitive. As we expand the tour each 
year, this will increase in our ability to promote cultural awareness and diversity around environmental 
stewardship.   

2. Project Location: This project will take place at the Trout Creek Pocket Park located at the 
crossroads of Jibboom Street and Bridge Street in historic, downtown Truckee.  

3. Project Description: MAP highlighted a goal in our 2016 Truckee River Fund grant request to include 
youth education as part of the overall plan for the Pocket Park. We are following through with this 
goal and initiating the Stewardship and Service Learning Program in fall 2018. We will host SELS’ 
second and third graders at the park and introduce them to all of the amazing attributes afforded by 
the park and described in the goals and priorities section of this request.                    

4. Grant Priorities: VI. Stewardship and Environmental Awareness: This project utilizes a successful 
model of stewardship and site rehabilitation to highlight a variety of watershed improvements. MAP 
will demonstrate to Truckee students what steps were taken to achieve the water quality benefits 
and restoration measures seen at the park today.  

VII. Meet Multiple Objectives: The project will achieve multiple objectives including a real-time picture 
of how a neglected and contaminated site can be restored and revitalized with water quality 
implementation measures such as permeable pavers. Students will learn about slope stabilization, the 
importance of drought tolerant plant species and how to avoid polluting our creeks and rivers with 
storm water run-off. We will identify aquatic invasive plants, explain why they are detrimental to the 
health of our watershed and how to test our water for contaminants.  

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#202



3 
 

VIII. Leverage Stakeholder Assets and Participation: MAP was able to leverage significant stakeholder 
assets to develop the park and we plan to continue to work with the Town of Truckee and the Martis 
Fund for support. We will work with collaborative partners such as the Truckee River Watershed Council, 
the Sierra Watershed Education Partnership and the Tahoe Institute for Natural Science as we develop 
our programming for this project and to assist us as we grow this outdoor educational resource.  

5. Permitting: This project requires no additional permitting.  
6. Future Land Use: This site is Town of Truckee property and as far as we know it will never be 

rezoned from its current land use designation as a park.  
7. If future phases of the project will be needed: This grant request covers the cost to execute this 

project for fall 2018 and fall 2019. Our goal is to continue this project as a collaboration with all of 
the local schools, including private schools, charter schools and home schooling groups. We believe 
our funding needs will decrease after the first year and will focus on staff time and small material 
expenses.  

8. Principles involved: MAP will have one staff member serve as the principle project lead. This person 
will coordinate with the teachers at SELS and Truckee Elementary School and be the liaison with the 
TTUSD to help facilitate the continuation of this program in the future.  

9. Number of staff positions: One staff member will serve as the project director and we will have two 
staff members present for the program days.  

10. Number of volunteers: As this is a collaborative project with a local school, MAP will not need any 
volunteers. Any parent volunteers will be recruited by the teachers.  

11. Timeline: MAP will begin this project in June 2018 with the development of the materials needed 
for the first site tour in September 2018. The first phase of this project will end in fall 2019 with the 
second round of site tours.  

12. Success: MAP will define success with the inclusion of the Pocket Park on the Downtown Historic 
Tour in fall 2018. We already have buy-in from SELS to participate. The excitement expressed by 
both teachers, Diane Welch and Dana Seaborg furthered our sense that the park is an amazing 
opportunity to bring awareness to a wide array of important, educational learning targets. There 
was support for the creation of the two-sided, bilingual activity sheet with educational themes and 
games to bring home to share what the students learn with their parents. This take home sheet will 
benefit 50 kids in our first year of the program and at least as many parents and relatives who may 
have never heard of the Pocket Park. SELS’ teachers want to incorporate the park into their 
curriculum and have the students create a rack card about the Pocket Park as part of their 
expedition work. Last year, students made a professional looking card called 10 Things for Kids 
Under 10 to Do in Truckee and next year it will focus on the park with graphics, photos and a list of 
the park's key attributes. The inclusion of Truckee Elementary in fall 2019 will be another indicator 
of success. This will be accomplished via outreach by MAP to the elementary school. We will work to 
have a rep from the school attend the tour in 2018 in order to see the program. Our hope is to 
inspire these third grade teachers to include the park in their downtown tour in 2019. This will add 
an additional 100 students to the tour with all of the associated benefits. We achieved our goal of 
completing the Pocket Park in 2016 and we are confident in our ability to create an ongoing outdoor 
education program at the park to engage local youth and inspire a new generation of environmental 
stewards.  

 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#202



50 Washington Street, Suite 300, Reno, NV 89503 
Phone 775-333-5499  //  Fax 775-333-5487  // nevadafund.org 

Connecting people who care with causes that matter. 

Grant Match 
Match amount to be provided: $ 
Match details: Please provide the form of your matching funds. If match is made up of both cash and in-

kind, fill in both sections.  

Match is:   
Cash $ 
In-kind $ 

Note: Volunteer and in-kind hours may be calculated at a maximum rate 
of $20/hour per individual. Indirect cost may not be counted as match. 

For the cash portion of your match, is the funding already being held by the applicant for 
this project?  Yes __  No __

Description of 
matching 
funds/in-kind 
donations: 

ATTACHMENTS 
You may be asked to submit the following attachments via email. If you are asked to submit the attachments, clearly 
label each file with your organization’s name. If you do not have the ability to email them, place each of the items listed 
below on a separate page and submit just one copy. 
Nonprofits submit: 

Last audited financial statements if your organization has been audited 
List of Board of Directors 
Copy of agency’s IRS 501(c)(3) Tax Determination Letter 
Copy of the agency’s most recent IRS Form 990 

Governmental entities submit: 
Departmental budget in lieu of audited financial statements 

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#202



Program/Project:  _Trout Creek Pocket Park Stewardship & Service Learning Program

SECTION ONE – PROJECT INCOME

Funding Sources

List each actual and/or anticipated source of funding for 
this project ONLY.

Amount Funds committed Funds requested

Box 1:                                            Truckee River Fund $8,000 X

Vail Resorts Epic Promise Grant Program $2,000 X

Project Income                                                        Box 2  $                 10,000 

SECTION TWO – PROJECT EXPENSES

Expense Items

Project Expenses, including staff time Amount

Staff Time: program development, outreach, material 
development, program execution

$8,550 $8,000 

Materials: Activity Sheet/Rack Card $1,200 $0 

Translation Services to take activity sheet and translate 
information into Spanish $250 $0 

Project Expense  $                 10,000  $                   8,000 

Should match     Box 
2

Should match     Box 
1

Truckee River Fund 
PROJECT BUDGET FORM

Amount of item to 
be funded by 
Truckee River 

Fund grant

Applicant: ____________Mountain Area Preservation _____________________________________________

02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#202



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#203



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6
#203



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#203



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#203



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#203



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#203



02-23-18 TRF Agenda Item 6 
#203


